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Independént Auditor's Report

To,
The Members of LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED

Report on Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Lumina
Datamatics Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
companies (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”),
which comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and on the consideration of report of the other auditor on separate Financial
Statements of the subsidiary Company referred to in point 1 & 2 in the paragraph on
“Other Matters” below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of their Consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, of
Consolidated Profit (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and its Consolidated Cash Flows for the year then ended.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements Section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAl), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. - '

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. . >
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Sr. Key Audit Matter Response To Key Audit Matter
No.

1 | Adoption of Ind AS 115 — Revenue | Principal Audit Procedures
from Contracts with Customers
We assessed the Company's process |
As described in Note 1(e) to the | to identify the impact of adoption of
Consolidated Financial Statements, the | the new revenue accounting standard.
Group has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue
 from Contracts with Customers (‘Ind AS | Our audit procedures on adoption of
| 115") which is the new revenue | the new revenue accounting standard,
| accounting standard. The application and | include —:

!- transition to this accounting standard is I
complex and is an area of focus in the |« Evaluated the design and

audit. . implementation of the processes

and internal controls relating to
The revenue standard establishes a implementation of the new revenue
| comprehensive framework for accounting standard;

determining whether, how much and
when revenue is recognized. This |e FEvaluated the detailed analysis

involves certain key judgments relating to performed by management on

identification of distinct performance revenue streams by selecting

obligations, determination of transaction samples for the existing contracts

price of identified performance obligation, with customers and considered

the appropriateness of the basis used to revenue recognition policy in the
! measure revenue recognized over a current period in respect of those
| period.  Additionally, the standard revenue streams.

mandates robust disclosures in respect of

revenue and periods over which the Evaluated the changes made to IT |

remaining performance obligations will be | systems to reflect the changes

satisfied subsequent to the Balance |  required in revenue recognition as

Sheet date. | per the new accounting standard
and

_ e Evaluated the appropriateness of
' ‘ the disclosures provided under the
; new revenue standard and |
. assessed the completeness and |
. mathematical accuracy of the
relevant disclosures.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Holding
Company's Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our Auditors'
Report thereon. il ASSA
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Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the
Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, the consolidated
financial performance, the consolidated changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. = "=/ .
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have c_ornplied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
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all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

1. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the audited Financial Statements of
three subsidiaries including two step down subsidiaries, whose Financial Statements
reflect Group's share of total assets of Rs. 904.27 lakhs as at March 31, 2024,
Group's share of total revenue of Rs. 1,512.92 lakhs, Group's share of total net loss of
Rs. 11.16 lakhs, and Group’s share of net cash inflow of Rs. 88.61 lakhs for the year
from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024, as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which have been audited by their respective independent auditor. The
independent auditors’ report on Financial statements/Financial information of this
entity have been furnished to us and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of this entity, is based solely on the report of such auditor and the procedures
performed by us are as stated in paragraph above.

2. We did not audit the Financial Statements of one step down subsidiary Company, for
the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024, whose Financial Statements reflect
Group's share of total assets of Rs. 335.19 lakhs as at March 31, 2024, Group's share
of total revenue of Rs. 483.58 lakhs, Group's share of total net profit of Rs. 21.60
lakhs, and Group’s share of net cash inflow of Rs. 34.42 lakhs for the year from April
01, 2023 to March 31, 2024. This Financial Statement and other financial information
are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on
the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-
Sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited Financial Statements. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management,
this Financial Statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other Auditor on separate Financial Statements of a subsidiary and
unaudited Financial Statements of a subsidiary referred to in the paragraph on “Other
Matters”, we report, to the extent applicable, that.
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a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of
the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept by the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries included in the group, so far as appears from our
examination of those books and report of the other auditor.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the Consolidated statement of changes in equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company and a Subsidiary Company incorporated in India as on March
31, 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company,
we report that none of the directors of the Group is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company incorporated in
India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in "Annexure A".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on the
Financial Statements of one of the Step Down Subsidiary and Financial
Statements certified by the Management in the case of one of the Step-Down
Subsidiary:

i.  The Group does not have any pending litigations on its financial position in
its Consolidated Financial Statements

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary Company incorporated in India during the year ended March 31,
2024.

iv.  a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or investe_d (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind.of' funds) by
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the Group to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Company or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Group from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Funding Party or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub clause (iv) (a) and (b) contain any material mis-
statement.

V. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance
with Section 123 of the Act.

VI. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order’” “CARO") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's
report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its two Indian subsidiaries to which
reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or
adverse remarks in its CARO report.

VII. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company and
its two Indian subsidiaries have used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with. However, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at
the database level to log any direct data changes for the accounting software used for
maintaining the books of account relating to payroll and invoice generation in the
Holding company and one Indian subsidiary. Further, in case of the Holding Company,
the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database
level to log any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining
the books of account relating to consolidation.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 104746W/W100096

Ko

Kunal Vakharia

Partner

Membership no. 148916

UDIN: 24148916BKCQNE5168
Place: Mumbai

Date: 07" May 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Lumina
Datamatics Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and its two subsidiary Companies incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of Holding Company and its subsidiary Company
incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company and considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Holding Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company incorporated in India,
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls both
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company and its subsidiary
Company incorporated in India and internal financial control system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Holding Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Holding Company and its two subsidiary Companies incorporated in India, have,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company and its two subsidiary Companies
incorporated in India considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 104746W/W100096

Ko

Kunal Vakharia

Partner

Membership no. 148916

UDIN: 24148916BKCQNE5168
Place: Mumbai

Date: 07" May 2024
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LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2024
(All figures in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 1,779.47 2,143.93
Goodwill 3 5,176.82 3,253.68
Other intangible assets 3 249.52 27738
Right to use assets 890.89 1,232.66
Financial assets
i. Investments 4 7,822.59 5,966.98
1. Other financial assets 5 370,75 311.85
Deferred tax assets (Ne) 397.45 58799
Non-current tax assets 162.08 300.02
Other non-current assets 6 36.43 .39
Total non-current assets 16,886.00 14.082.88
Current asscts
Financial assets
1. Investments 7 13,671.39 8,724.45
i1 Trade receivables ] 7,158 84 7,371.44
iil. Cash and cash equivalents 9 4.89] .42 4,803.71
v. Other financial assets 10 3,722.63 3,232.56
Other current assets 11 486.59 456.16
Total current assets 29,930.87 24,588.32
Total assels 46,816.87 38,671.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital
Equity share capital 12(a) 1,077.87 1,077.87
Other Equity 12(b) 40,042.95 31,977.32
Equity attributable 1o owners of Lumina Datamatics Linited 41,120.82 33,055.19
Non-controlling interests 12(b) 3031 243
Total equity 41,151.13 33.057.62
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilitics
Financial habilities
1. Lease habilities 431.49 816.18
1. Other financial habilities 13 - 411.23
Provisions 14 1,008.29 785.00
Taotal non-current liabilities 1,439.78 2,012.41
Current liabilities
Financial habilitics
1. Trade payables
Dues of Micro and small enterpnses 15 34.06 23.71
Dues other than Micro and small enterprises 15 2,121.17 1,906.26
11, Lease habilities 546.51 488.66
1L Other financial liabilities 16 511.31 241.34
Provisions 17 374,18 292.68
Current tax labilities 178.67 B5.19
Other current liabilitics 18 460.06 563.34
Tatal current liabilities 4,225.96 3,601.18
Total liabilities 5.665.74 5,613.59
Total equity and liabilities 46.816.87 38.671532_
The accompanying notes formung an integral part of the financial statements 1-50

As per our attached report of even date
For Kanu Deshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 104746W/W 100096

————

Ko

Kunal Vakharia
Partner

Membership No. 148916 \‘1’;\\—'//:\5)’
Place : Mumbai \u o ‘_ﬁ_”@;"/
e

Dated : 07th May, 2024

/ / lnr and gn behalf of tlle Board
(24 p ;
_ W&/

CEO and Managing Director

Sameer Kanodia

DIN; pOon8232

_/‘w‘

Dr. Lalit 8. Kanodh

Chairman
DIN 00008030

Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary



LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement Of Profit And Loss For The Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All figures in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Continuing operations

Revenue from operations 19 40,572.80 36,215.78
Other income 20 1,960.72 1,390.64
Total income 42,533.52 37.606.42
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 21 21,532.91 18,473.99
Finance Cost 22 114.30 94.37
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 1,478.25 1,399.23
Other expenses 24 8,528.21 8,145.68
Total expenses 31,653.67 28,113.27
Profit before exceptional items and tax 10,879.85 9,493.15
Profit before tax 10,879.85 9,493.15
Tax expense

- Current tax 25(a) 1,964.62 1,765.85

- Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 25(a) (6.09) 81.99

- Delerred tax 25(c) 128.65 18.85
Total tax expense/(credit) 2,087.16 1,866.69
Profit from continuing operations 8,792.68 7,026.46
Share of Minority Interest in (profit) / loss for the year (14.61) 12.68
Profit for the year 8.778.07 7,639.14

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) for the year ended March 31,2024

Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow Hedges 288.27 (620.19)
Foreign currency franslation reserve movement 181.42 840.88
Tax relating to above (72.55) 156.09
397.14 376.78
Items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
Actuarial gains and losses {42.36) 2.63
Tax relating to above 10.66 (0.66)
(31.70) 1.97
OCI for the year 365.44 378.75
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,158.13 8,005.22

Earnings per equity share (face value Rs. 10 each)
Lumina Datamatics Limited

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 31 40.72 3544
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 31 40.72 3544
The accompanying notes forming an integral part of the financial statements 1-50

As per our attached report of even date

-

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on :?elmlf of the Board
Chartered Accountants ,/ . / / < '
istration No. 1 b M L
Firm Registration No 04746Wf?’101_]l:i96 ok (22 A\ Dy \ i,
% st > ; Sameer Kanodia Dr. Lalit S. Kanodia
CEO and Managing Director Chairman
DIN; 00008232 DIN 00008050
Kunal Vakharia
Partner % ’
Membership No. 148916
Place : Mumbai Prashant Parekh

Dated : 07th May.2024 _/Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED

Ci lidated Cash flow st for the Year ended March 31.2024
(All figures in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 111,865,23 9,505,583
Adjustment for |
Depreciation and amortization 939.31 212.99
Depreciation on Right to Use Assets 538.94 486.24
Interest on lease liabilities 102.16 80,32
Loss on sale of fixed assets 19.17 -
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 262.43 77.08
Expected credit loss (147.48) (257.22)
Interest expense 12.14 14.06
Dividend income (1.90) -
Profit on sale of Investment (319.17) {314.02)
Unrealised (gain) / loss on fair value of financial assets (854.19) 117.87
Rent concession income / Early termination of lease (3.74) =
Interest income - Accrued (461.07) (272.56)
Unrealized exchange difference, net 299.51 916.23
386.11 1,760.98
Operating profit before working capital changes 11,251.35 11,266.80
Adjustments for -
Increase in trade receivables 17296 (1,597.36)
Increase / Decrease in financial asset (527.55) (1,243.21)
Increase i other assets (55.47) (72.47)
Increase /Decrease in trade payables 225.26 398.55
Increase in other financial and non-financial habilities 2232 371.08
Others - Minority Interest 29.23 242
63.74 (2,140.98)|
Cash generated from operations 11,315.09 9,125.83
Direct taxes paid (net) (1,727.10) (1,704.70)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 9,587.99 T421.12
B. Cash flow from investing activities
| Purchase of fixed assets / capital work-m-progress (2,489.30) (1,565.340)
Sale of fixed assets 0.04
Dividend received 1.90 -
Purchase of debentures (1,855.61) (4,103.25)
Int: Income 461.07 272.56
Profit on sale of Investment 319,17 314.02
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (3,562.77) (5,081.93)
C. Cash from financing activities
Payment of Lease Liabilities (622.42) (559.00)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of short-term bormrowings - (500.00)
Dividend Paid (1,077.87) (269.47)
Interest paid (11.38) (14.06)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (1.711.64) (1,642,52)
Net cash flow during the vear (A)H(B)+(C) 4,313.58 696.67
Add: Cash balance added on amalgamation
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13,407.72 12.798.67
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (133.10) (87.62)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17,588.20 13.407.72

Reconciliation between cash and cash equivalents shown with the Balance Sheet

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer note no. V)

Add: Current investments considered as part of cash and cash equivalents
(Refer note no. 7)

Cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

March 31, 2024

| March31.2023

4,891.42 480371
12,696.75 8,604.01
17,588.17 13407.72

As per our attached report of even date

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104746 W/WI1000%6

Kend

Kunal Vakharia

Partner {

Membership No. 148916

Place : Mumbai
Dated : 07th May,2024

For and on behalf of the Board

Sameer kanodia
CEQO and Managing Director
DIN: IH]SJ.JI

Ashifh Jain
i Financial Officer

/ fome o (nu s

. Lalit 5, Kanodia
Chairman
DIN 00008050

ww

Prashant Parekh
Company Secretary
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LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes Forming part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

a)

b)

ii

a)

Company Overview

Lumina Datamatics Limited (‘the Company’) having CIN U22220TN2007PLC065507 was incorporated on November 26, 2007
and is engaged in the business of c-commerce, c-retail and e-publishing services which mainly include editorial services,
composition services, media and related services.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20157 and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

Basis of Consolidation:

Subsidiaries

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Lumina Datamatics Limited and its subsidiaries. The
subsidiaries considered in the consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31 , 2023 are summarized

2023-24 2022 - 23
Name of the Subsidiary . Country of % of shareholding - Country 1_)!' % of shareholding
incorporation incorporation

Lumina  Datamatics  cRetail|India 100.00 |India 100.00
Limited
Lumina Datamatics Inc USA 100.00 |USA 100.00
Lumina Datamatics GmbH Germany 100.00 |Germany 100.00
Lumina Datamatics UK UK 100,00 UK 100.00
Lumina Datamatics Corp. Philippines 100.00 |Philippines 100.00
Sunrise Setting Ltd UK 70.00 |UK 70.00
Diacritech Technologies Pvt Ltd.  |India 100.00
Diacritech Inc. USA 100.00

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-Group balances / transactions and
resulting unrealized profits in full. The amounts shown in respect of accumulated reserves comprises the amount of the relevant
reserves as per the balance sheet of the Company and its share in the post acquisition increase / decrease in the relevant reserves /
accumulated deficit of its subsidiaries.

Non controlling interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of the amount of equity attributable to the non
controlling shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Company in the subsidiary companies and further
movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments.

The Company and its Indian subsidiaries maintain their records and prepare their financial statements under the Historical Cost
Convention except for certain property, plant and equipments which are revalued, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principals in India while the foreign subsidiaries maintain their records and prepare their financial statements in
conformity with GAAP prevalent in their respective countries of domicile.

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances except in case of charge of depreciation on fixed assets and other insignificant items for which the
accounting treatment is given on the basis of local laws applicable in the respective countiry, for which using uniform accounting
policies for the purpose of consolidation is impracticable.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

* Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) which is measured at fair value;
* Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value




¢)

d)

ii)

€)

g2

h)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles require estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of the assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are
recognised in the year in which the results are known / materialized.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions, balances and translation

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at
historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. Any income or expense on account of
exchange difference cither on settlement or on translation at the balance sheet date is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year in which it arises.

The consolidated financial statements are reported in Indian rupees. The translation of the local currency of each foreign
subsidiary within the Group into Indian rupees is performed in respect of assets and liabilities including fixed assets using the
exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date and for revenue and expense items, using a monthly simple average exchange
rate for the period. Net exchange difference resulting from the above translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries is
recognised in Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Reserve. Exchange Difference arising on investment in subsidiaries is recognised in
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Reserve.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from technical and softwarc services is recognized on a time and material basis when services are rendered and related
costs are incurred. Revenue is recognized when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its ultimate realization or
collection

Income tax

Tax expense comprise of current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits
computed for each of the entities in the Group in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of applicable tax
laws of the respective jurisdictions where the entities are located.

Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for
the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Leases
As a lessee

Ind AS 116, the company is complying with IND AS 116 for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
for both lessees and lessors, It introduccs a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into cash and have original
maturities of three months or less from date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
mcthod, less provision for impairment,




K)

ii)

iii)

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

* Those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit and loss. When the financial assct is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments
The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value (except investment in joint venture which is valued at
amortised cost). Where the company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in

other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from
such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/(losses) in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are
not reported separately from other changes in fair value,

Impairment of financial assets
The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost

and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 28 details how the company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.




iv)

m)

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

* The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financial asset,

Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge it's risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to
certain firm commitments and forecasted transactions. Such forward contracts are utilised against the inflow of funds under firm
commitments. The Company does not use the forward contract for speculative purposes. The Company designates these hedging
instruments as cash flow hedge. The use of hedging instruments is governed by the Company's policies approved by the Board of
Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such financial derivatives consistent with the Company's risk
management strategy.

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value and are remeasured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair
value of these derivatives that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly in OCI and the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as they arise.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined based on observable market inputs including currency spot and
forward rates, yield curves, currency volatility etc.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. At that time for forecasted transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised
in OCI is retained until the forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCl is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to scttle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.




n)

0)

iii)

)

v)

Vi)

P

q)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipments are valued at cost after reducing accumulated depreciation until the date of the balance sheet.
Direct costs are capitalised until the assets are ready to use and include financing costs relating to any specific borrowing
attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets. Intangible assets are recognised, only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. Capital
work-in-progress includes assets not put to use before the vear end.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1s provided on the Straight Line Method except for leasehold and freehold land as
per the useful life and in the manner prescribed in Schedule IT to Companies Act, 2013.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill on consolidation of subsidiaries is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Computer software
The intangible assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is available for
Useg.

Other Intangible assets

Other intangible assets that do not meet the criteria in (i) to (iii) above are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Amortisation methods and periods
The company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method.

Particulars Useful Life
Goodwill Nil
Customer contracts 3 years
Computer Software 3 years
Other intangible assets 3 years

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Tnd AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets recognised as at 1
April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilitics unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of

the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.




r)

5)

v)
i)

ii)

1ii)

)

u)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other
gains/(losses).

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or
part of the hability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on
or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the
entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs, which are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assets are capitalised
as a part of the cost of the assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the year in which they are incurred.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for contingent liability is
made when there is possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.

Employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, as they are incurred,

Defined Benefit Plan

Company's liabilities towards gratuity and leave encashment are determined using the projected unit credit method as at Balance
Sheet date. Actuarial gains / losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation.

The Foreign subsidiary company has a savings and investment plan under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of the
United States of America. This is a defined contribution plan. Contributions made under the plan are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they accrue.

Restricted Stock Units

Employee Compensation in the form of stock options, granted under LDL RSU Plan 2016 and LDL Phantom Stock Appreciation
Plan have been charged to Profit & Loss Statement, based on fair value method, over the vesting period.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs dircctly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Earnings per share

In determining Earnings per Share, the Company considers the net profit after tax after reducing the preference dividend and tax
thereon and includes the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary items. The number of shares used in computing basic Earnings per
Share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted
Earnings per Share comprises the weighted average shares considered for derivin g basic Earnings per Share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 4 - Non-current in

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Unquoted

In in cquity instr (fully paid-up) (st FVTPL)

1) Handy Traming Technologies Private Limited, India - 150.00

Less: Provision for impairment of investment in Handy Traming Technologes

Private Limited, India - {15000}

Asat March 31, 2024 -0, As at March 31, 2023 : 4657 Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each of Handy Training Technologies Private Litd, India

Unguoted

| in equity insir (Tully paid-up)

Investment in NSE Limited - 2,000 shares of Rs. 3,000 each 60,00 60.00
Unquoted

Investment in debentures & Bonds(at Amortised Cost)

10.40% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 10,00,000 cach, Qty:30

Redeemable as on: July 27,2027 , of Svatantra Microfin Pyt Led 31430 <

Unquoted
Other L = Term deposits with fi ial instituti {at amortized cost )
8.21% — Shriram Finance Limited 1,000.00 -

Quoted:
Investment in debentures & Bonds(at Amortised Cost)

#.45% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 1,000 each, Qry: 20,000

Redeemable as on: July 12,2028 | of Cholamandalam Investment & Finance 201.08 .

8.9% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 1,00,000 cach, Qry: 400
Redeemable us on: Dee, 2025, of IM Financial Products Ltd 20235 400.61 -

10.75% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 100,000 each, Qty: 400
Redecmable as on: August 1,2026 | of Muthoot Microfin Limited

402.9% -
Quoted: Other catergory
Investmeni in Category 111 AIF (at FVTPL)
Indigrid Invit
As at March 31, 2023: 344,535 Units at NAV 132.78 and
As at March 31, 2024: 344,535 Units at NAV 134.01 Each 45747 461.71
Quated:
Investment in debentures & Bonds(nt FYTPL)
7.51% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 1,000,000 each, Qry: 50
Redeemable as on: July 11,2024, of Sriram Transport Finance Company Limited - 528.15
9.75% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 1,000,000¢ach, Qty: 20
Redeemable as on:April 30,2025 , Edelweiss Finance and Investments Ltd 22597 200,65
9.10%Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures FV; 1,000,000 each, Qty: 50
JHRedeemable as on:January 9, 2025 | Tata International Limited - 500.00
7.70%Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV; 30,000,000 each, Oty 30
Redecmable as on: December 19, 2024, of Mahindra & Mahindra Fi
Service Limited 2 302,34
12% Non-Convertible Redecmable Debentures, FV: 1,000,000 cach, Quy: 30
Redeemable as on: July 21,2025, of Edelweiss Finance and Investments Lid 442,65 20519
10.5%Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV1 00, 000each, Qry: 400
Redeemable as oni26-Feb-27 , 42M ECAP Ruby Serics 446.26 -
Edelweiss Nifty Psu Bond Plus
As at March 31, 2024: 5,493,526.485 Units at NAV 11809, and
As at March 31, 2023: 5,493 526 485 Units at NAV 11,0335 Each 648.76 606.13
Kotak Nifty Sd1 Apr 2027
As at March 31, 2024: 9,695,075 Units at Rs.11.068 and
As at March 31, 2023: 9,695,075 Units at Rs.10.349 Each 1,073.05 1,003.36

SBI Cpse Bond plus

As at March 31, 2024; 9,615,551.071 Units at NAV 11,167, and

As at March 31, 2023: 9,615,551.071 Units at NAV 10.415 Each 1,073 82 1,001 49
Mippon India Nifty AAA Cpse Bond Plus Sd1

As at March 31, 2024: 4,852 289 Units at Rs.11.055 and

As at March 31, 2023: 4,852,289 Units at Rs.10,304 Each 536.44 499,98
ICICI Prudential Nifty Sdi Dec 2028 Index Fund

As at March 31, 2024; 4,796,061 289 Units at Rs, 11,242 and

As at March 31, 2023; 4,796,061.289 Units a1 Rs. 10.425 Fach 539.18 499.98
Total 7.822.59 5,966.98
Aggregate amount of guoted investments 644528 5,906.97

Aggregate of ung | inv 1,374.30 60.01




LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the ¢ lidated fi ial st nts

Note 5 - Other non-current financial assets

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Unsecured considered good

Security deposits

Interest Accrued

Fair value of out ling forward (FVOCT)

308.59
56,79
536

311.85

Total

Note 6 - Other non-current assets

370,75

311.85

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Unsecured considered good
Other advances
Prepaid expenses

450
31.93

445
ER-L

Total

Note 7 - Carrent i

36,43

§.39

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Quoted

Investment in mutual funds (at FYTPL)

Nippon India Liquid Fund Direct Plan- Growth

As at March 31, 2024 ; 874.230 Units at Rs.5908.93

As at March 31, 2023 : 1,285 783 Units at Rs 5506.93
Nippon India Arbitrage Fund-Direct — Growth

As at March 31,2024: 3 512 181.791 Units &t Rs, 26.14
As st March 31,2023; 3,141,788 603 Units at Rs. 24,139

ICICT Corporate Bond Fund

As 4t March 31,2024:1,495,360.492 Units At Rs.28 14 and
As at March 31,2023:1,495,360.492 Units At Rs.26 028 Each
ICICI Short Term Fund - Dp Growth

As at March 31, 2024:309,635.088 Units at Rs. 58.932 and
As at March 31, 2023:309,635.088 Units at Rs. 54.368 Each
ICICT All Seasons Bond Fund - Dp Growth

As at March 31, 2024:257,471.334 Units a1 Rs. 35.668 and
As at March 31, 2023:257,471.334 Units s Rs. 32.811 Each
Axis Short-Term Fund - Direct Plan-Growth

As at March 31, 2024: 748,914 Units at Rs. 30.227 and

As at March 31, 2023: 748,914 Units at Rs, 28.024 each
Axig Short-Term Fund - Regular Growth (Stgpg)

As at March 31, 2024: 251,041 .88, Units at Rs. 27.89 and
As at March 31, 2023: 251 041 88, Units at Rs. 26.007 Each
Kotak Corporate Bond Fund Growth

As at March 31, 2024: 6,880.018 Units at Rs. 3399.858 and
As at March 31, 2023: 6,880.018 Unirs at Rs, 3161.409 Each
Nippon India Floating Rate Fund - Direct-Growth Plan

As at March 31, 2024: 768.417:Units at Rs.42.718 and

As al March 31, 2023: 768,417:Units a1 R$.39.515 Each

Investment in Category 111 AIF ( at FVTPL)
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund

As at March 31, 2024: 935,244 Units at Rs, 100.989 and
As ai March 31, 2023: 862,580 Units at Rs.100 Each

Investment in equity mutual funds and ETF (at FVTPL)
Nippon Nifty Bees

As at March 31, 2024: 80,270 Units a1 Rs.247,13

As at March 31, 2023; 46,000 Units at Rs. 159860

Kotak Emerging Equity Fund-Regular-Growth

As at March 31, 2024: 125,451.10 Units at Rs.102.48 and
As at March 31, 2023: 20,696.32 Units at Rs.74.283 Each
Hdfe Balanced Advantage Fund - Regular Plan - Grow

As at March 31, 2024: Units 112,404.63 at Rs.451.49; and
As at March 31, 2023: Units 83,001.86 at Rs.323.303 Each
Hdfe Balanced Advantage Fund - Direct Plan - Growth

As ul March 31, 2024: Units 45,030,521 at Rs.484.131 and
As at March 31, 2023: Units 45,030,521 at Rs.444.121 Each,
ICICI Pru balanced Advantage Fund Growth

March 2023 unit 490,171.570 @ 52.52 As at March, 2024 unit N1L

Kotak Equity Arbitrage - Growth
As at March 31, 2024: 2,087,345 88 units at NAV of 36.38 cach

Edelweiss Arbitrage Fund - Direct Plan-Growth
As at March 31, 2024: 4,017,821.78 units at Rs.18.91

51.66

917.95

420,88

182.47

91,84

212638

T0.02

233.91

328.26

944 49

19837

128.57

507.50

218.01

TO.R1

T5R.30

189.21

168,34

&4.48

209.87

65.29

217.50

303.64

862.58

8734

1537

268 35

25744




LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Parag Parikh Flexi Cap - Direct Plan

As at March 31, 2024: 451,919.69 Units at Rs. 74.87

ICICI Focused Equity Fund

As at March 31, 2024: 420,142 987 Units at Rs. 84,22

Kotak Emerging Equity Fund-Direct-Growth

As ot March 31, 2024: 73,502 Units at Rs, 117.01

As at March 31, 2023: 5,049.691 Units at Rs. 99.01 1

Quated:

Investment in debentures & Bonds(at FVTPL)

9.0% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 100,000 cach, Ouy: 454
Redeemable as on: March 18,2024, of Edelweiss Finance and Investments Ltd

7.65% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV; 1,000,000 each, Qty: 30
Redcemable as on: September 15,2023, of Muthoot Fincorp Limited

9%Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, Fv: §5,000,000 Each, Qty: 55
Redeemahle As On: December Tth 2023, of Nuvam Wealth Finance Limited
7.70%MNon-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 3,00,00,000 eack, Oty:30
Redeemable as on: December 19, 2024, of Malindra & Mahindra Financial
Service limited

7.51% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 1,000,000 cach, Oty: 50
Redeemable as on: July 11,2024, of Edelweiss Finance and Investments Ltd

Quoted

Investment in Debentures (at Amortised cost)

9.8% Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures, FV: 10,00,000 each, Qry: 30
Redeemable as on: October 31,2024, of Belstar Microfinance Ltd

Unguated
Investment in Debentures (al Amortised cost)

9.10%MNon-Convertible Redeemable Debentures FV10,00,000 each, Qty: 50
[Redecmable as on:January 09th 2025 | Tara International Limited

Un Quated:

Other Investment — Term dey
cost

5.46% - HSBC Bank USA
4.46% - HSBC Bank USA
4.53% - HSBC Bank USA
5.54% - HSBC Bank USA
5.25% — Bajuj Finance Limited
3.75% — PNB Housing Finance
6.77% — Shriram Transport Finance

its with fi ial

ions - Amortised

33835

35384

86,01

32583

567.93

298.44

505.47

1,668.00
1,788.18
863.57
834,00

576.66

330.47

625.70

1,683.00

250,00
500.00
1,000.00

Total

Aggregate amount of guoted investments
Aggregate of ung 1 iy

Note 8 - Trade receivables

13,671.39

872445

8.010.17
3,661.22

5,291.46
3,433.00

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Unsecured (Refer note 27)
Considered Good
Considered doubtful

Less - Allowance for expected eredit loss

7.158.84
285,13
7.443.97
285.13

137144
432.61
7,804.05
432 61

Total

FY13-24

7,158.84

7,371.44

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
manths

06 months -
1 year

11-02 years

02-03years

More than 3
Years

Total

(i)Undisputed Trade reccivables — considered good
{1Undisputed Trade Recevables - considered doubtful
(iii)Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
{iviDisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

T.407.77

36.20

744397

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivahles
Total

FY22-23

(285.13)
T,158.84

Particulars

for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6

06 months -
1 year

01-02 years

02-03years

More than 3

Tutal

vears

(i)Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good
(i)Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful
(iii)Disputed Trade Receivables considered pood

{iv)Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

7,647.94

T.83

140,74

748

7,804.04

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables
Total

(432.61)
7,371.44



LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 9 - Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Bank balances 4 884 58 4,802.57
Cash on hand 6.84 1,15
4,801.42 4,803.72
Note 10 - Other current fi ial assets
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured considered good
Security deposits 12.86 20.29
Loan and advance to employees and others 75.61 15.10
Fair Value of Outstanding Forward Contracts (FVOCT) 16.05 -
Unbilled revenue** 2,187.50 1,910.57
Balance with govt autheritics 1.275.39 1.185.85
Interest Accrued 155.21 100.74
Other deposits 0.0 0.01
Total 3,722,63 3&31.56

**All unbilled revenue outstanding are less than 6 months

Note 11 - Other current assets

Particulars Murch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Prepaid expenses 37295 35332
Advance to suppliers 113.84 102 85
Total 486.59 456.16
T _—




LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 12 - Share capital and other equity

12(i) - Equity share capital
Authorised equity share capital of face value of Rs. 5/- each

Particulars Number of shares (Rs. in lacs)
March 31, 2022 10,00,00,000 5,000.00
Movement during the year - -
March 31, 2023 10,00,00,000 5,000.00
Movement during the year - -
March 31, 2024 10,00,00,000 5,000.00
12(ii )- Preference share capital

Authorised preference share capital of face value of Rs. 10/- each

Particulars Number of shares (Rs. in lacs)
March 31, 2022 4,15,00,000 4,150.00
Movement during the year = -
March 31, 2023 4,15,00,000 4,150.00
Movement during the year . 1
March 31, 2024 4,15,00,000 4,150.00
12(iii) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up equity share capital of face value of Rs. 5/- each

Particulars Number of shares (Rs. in lacs)
March 31, 2022 2,15,57,310 1,077.87
Movement during the year - -
March 31, 2023 2,15,57,310 1,077.87
Movement during the year " =
March 31, 2024 2,15,57,310 1,077.87

12(iv) Movements in equity share capital

Particulars Number of shares (Rs. in lacs)
March 31, 2022 2,15,57,310 1,077.87
Movement during the year - =
March 31, 2023 2,15,57,310 1,077.87
Movement during the year - -
March 31, 2024 2,15,57,310 1,077.87
12(v) Equity Shares of the company held by holding company
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity shares of Rs. § each held by Datamatics Global Services Limited 2,15,57.310 2,15,57,310
12(vi) Movements in equity share capital
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

icul

PNERInth Number of shares % Holding  Number of shares

Equity shares with voting rights
Datamatics Global Services Limited

100.00%

2,15,57,310.00

“1«‘(}/



12(vii) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5 each. Each holder of equity share entitled to one vote per share. The
company may in general meeting declare dividends, but no dividends shall exceed the amount recommended by the board. Repayment

of capital will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

12(b) - Reserves and surplus (Rs. in lacs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
Securities premium Refer Note (i) below 6,336.99 6,336.99
Retained earnings 24,349.09 16,648.89
Capital reserve Refer Note (ii) below 5,802.21 5,892.21
Capital redemption reserve Refer Note (iii) below 3.716.27 3,716.27
Cash flow hedging reserve Refer Note (v1) below 16.02 (199.70)
Foreign currency translation reserve Refer Note (v) below (11.39) (192.81)
Actuarial pains and losses Refer Note (vi) below (256.24) (224.54)
Total 40,042.95 31,977.31

Nature of reserves

(i) Securities Premium

Securities premium reserve is used fo record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act,
2013,

(ii) Capital Resserve
Capital reserve created on the merger of one of the subsidiaries with the company. Also Goodwill on common control transaction is adjusted against capital
reserve.

(iii) Capital Redemption Reserve
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum
cqual to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve,

(iv) OCI - Cash Flow Hedging Reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging
instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments
that are recognised and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. Such gains or losses will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in
the period in which the hedged transaction occurs.

(v) OCI - Foreign currency translation reserve
The exchange differences arising from the translation of financial statements of foreign operations with functional currency other than Indian rupees is
recognised in other comprehensive income, net of taxes and is presented within equity in the foreign currency translation reserve.

(vi) OCI - Actuarial gains and losses
Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in other compreshensive income, net of taxes.




LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 13 - Other non-current financial liabilities

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Provision for Share appreciation rights (refer note 32(d)) - 384.67
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts (FVOCI) 26,55
Total - 411.23
Note 14 - Non-current Provisions
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Unfunded (refer note 32)
Gratuity 724.19 557.58
Leave Encashment 284,10 227.42
Total 1,008,209 785.00
Note 15 - Trade payables
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Dues of Micro and small enterprises (refer note 39 ) 34.06 23,71
Dues other than Micro and small enterprises 2,121.17 1,906.27
Total 2,155.23 1,929.98
FY23-24
Outstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment
Particul
s Less than | Year 01-02 Years 02-03 Years Mu;:;::n : Total

(1) MSME 34.06 - - - 34.06
(i) Others 957.22 . . 3 957.22
(i1i) Disputed dues — MSME a = e : .
{iv) Disputed dues - Others = = - -
Add: Accrued Expenses (including employee liabilities) 1,163.95

2,155.23
FY22-23

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars th:
e Less than 1 Year| 01-02 Years 02-03 Years MD;:nr:n » Total

(i) MSME 2371 - - 23,71
(i1) Others 1,377.69 - - 1,377.69
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others B - - - -
Add: Accrued Expenses (including employee liabilities) 528.57

1,929.98
Note 16 - Other current financial liabilities
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Other payables 0.86 1.03
Payable to employees against Share Appreriation rights (refer note 32(d)) 51045 -
Fair Value of Outstanding Forward Contracts (FVOCI) - 24031
Total 511.31 241.34
Note 17 - Current Provisions
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Unfunded (refer note 32)
Gratuity 246.83 190.46
Leave Encashment 127.35 102.22
Total 374.18 292.68
Note 18 - Other current liabilities
Particulars March 31,2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Statutory dues 281.01 273.20
Advance from customer 179.05 290.14
Total 460.06 563.34




LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 19 - Revenue from operations (Rs. in lacs)
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Export - Sales 40,489.73 36,130.80
Domestic - Sales 83.07 84.98
Total 40,572.80 36,215.78
Note 20 - Other income

Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Dividend income from investent in Mutual / InvIT Funds 1.90 -
Dividend income from investent in InvIT Funds -- Not taxable 0.89 -
Other Income 0.39 -
Profit on sale of investments 319.17 314.02
Miscellaneous receipts 31.23 33.72
Interest Income 461.07 272.56
Export incentive received - 317.20
Unrealised gain / (loss) on fair value of financial assets 974.64 120.44
Exchange gain - 38.99
Interest on Income tax refund 17.69 12.27
Rent concession income / Early termination of lease 3.74 -
Sundry Balances Written back (Net) / Bad debts weitten back 150.00 281.44
Total 1,960.72 1,390.64

Interest income comprise:

| March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Interest on Income Tax 14.84 7.15
Interest on Fixed Deposit 446.23 265.41
Total 461.07 272.56

Note 21 - Employee benefit expenses

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Salary, Wages & Allowances 20,172.83 17,210.65
Contribution towards PF & Other funds (Refer Note No. 32(a)) 818.38 728.07
Share appreciation rights expenses(Refer Note No. 32(d)) 121.04 215.82
Staft Welfare 420.66 319.45
Total 21,532.91 18,473.99

Note 22 - Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Interest on loan from banks - 14.06
Interest expenses on financial liability 0.79 -
Interest on Income tax 11.36 -
Interest on lease liabilities 102.16 80.32

Total 114.30 94.37




LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 23 - Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property plant and equipment 644.82 529.39
Amortisation on intangible assets 294.49 383.60
Depreciaion on Right to Use Assets 538.94 486.24
Total 1,478.25 1,399.23

Note 24 - Other expenses

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Outsourcing cost 4,692.09 5,250.49
Electricity expenses 272.36 202.73
Legal & Professional expenses 429.03 290.53
Travelling expenses 230.86 193.52
Link Charges 162.69 141.39
Technical fees 62.27 100.22
Rent 35.11 30.23
Communication charges 184.07 178.79
Miscellaneous expenses 0.48 12.18
Hire charegs 464.64 280.76
Advertisement expenses & Sales promotion 13521 120.89
Recruitment charges 39.87 43.10
Audit fees (refer note 35) 29.44 30.41
Printing & Stationery 80.79 75.40
Subscription expenses 771.95 632.88
Bank charges 111.99 76.30
Rates & Taxes 36.94 33.46
Repairs & Maintenance expenses 239.03 211.33
Loss on sale of assets 19.17 -
Exchange loss 208.69 -
Security charges 85.83 59.65
Provision for Doubttul debts on account of ECL/ ( Bad debts

written back) 4.74 4.8
Less: Utilized from Provision For Doubtfull Debts

[nvestment in handy train written off 150 -
Less: Utilized from Provision For Impairment of investment (150) - -
Director fees 7.20 6.35
Insurance 114.55 98.72
Donation 2.33 -
CSR expenses 106.88 71.52

Total 8,528.21 8,145.68




LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 25 - Taxation

23(a) - Income tax expense (Rs. in lacs)
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 1,964.62 1,765.85
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (6.09) 81.99
Total current tax expense 1,958.54 1,847.84
Deferred tax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets {116.65) (13.17)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities 317.85 32.03
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 201.20 18.85
Income tax expense 2,159.74 1,866.70

25(b) - Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by statutory tax rates

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Profit for the year 10,879.85 9,493.15
Statutory tax rate applicable to Lumina Datamatics Limited 24.53% 24.11%
Tax expense at applicable tax rate 2,669.26 2,288.80
Deduction under 80JJAa (592.68) (48.39)
Non deductible expense (emtertainment, presents) 26.90 18.03
Long term Capital gains exempt upto Rs 100000 (4.26) (0.01)
Interest & penalty on belated payment of TDS 2.85 :
Adjustments for current tax of prior priods (17.19) -
Current tax (short) / excess provision (20.12) (0.63)
State wxes and minium taxes and taxes on buy back of shares 110.89 221.71
Adjustment of Carryforward Business Loss (588.97) (571.01)
Tax on Income tax adjustments 1.28 (32.34)
Others 3877 (9.46)
Income tax expense 2,159.74 1,866.70
237¢) - Deferred tax assets
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Movement in
Movement in
Particulars March 31,2024  opening retained R Movementin b 31, 2023
carnings / SOCIE comprehensive Profit and loss
income
Deferred tax assets (negative represent liabilities)
Leave Encashment 102.80 - - 20.56 82.24
Gratuity 24439 - 10.66 45.46 188.27
Disallowance for tax to be alloed next year under 40 a ia 0.93 - - 084 1.77
Directors Commision 30.25 18.27 11.98
Provision for impairment in invetment in Handy Train - - - -37.75 37.75
Lease Assets/ Liability 19.34 - 4.88 1446
Provision for SAR 128.47 - - 3L.66 96,81
Depreeiation and Amertisation 120.68 - - 71.53 49.14
Provision for expected credit loss 71,76 - - (37.12) 108.88
Total deferred tax assets 718.60 - 10.66 116.65 591.29

Deferred tax liabilities (negative represent asset)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Maovement in

Movement in

g 5 other Movement in
Particulars March 31, 2024 opening ref.amed comprehemsive.  Profit and lows March 31, 2023
earnings / SOCIE
income
Cash flow hedge reserve 5.39 - 72.55 - (67.16)
Interest on Financial Liabilities - - - - B
Unrealised gain on investment 315.76 B E 245,30 70.47
Total deferred tax liabilitics (negative represent asset) 321.15 - 7255 24530 330
Net Deferred Tax 397.45 (128.65) 58799
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Note 26: Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category (Rs. in lacs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amortised Amortised
FVTPL FvOcCl cost FVTPL FVOC1 cost
Financial assets
Investments

- Mutual funds 4,969.59 - - 2,267.55 -

- AIF Category 111 1,401.97 - - 1,324.29

-ETF 2,631.90 - - 688.50 - -

- Debentures 5,879.89 - 2,122.89 6,978.10 - -
Trade receivables - 7,158.84 - - 7,371.44
Cash and cash equivalens 4,591,492 - - 480372
Other balances with banks conaiating of following - - - - - -
Term deposits with financial institutions - - 4,487.75 - 3,433.00
Security deposit - 308.59 - - 311.85
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts = 21.41 = = =
Interest Accrued - - 212.00 - 100.74
Unbilled Revenue - 2,187.50 - 1,910.57
Other receivables - - 8846 3540
Other deposit CD balance - - 0.01 = = 0.01
Total financial assets 14.883.35 21.41 2145746 | 11,258.43 - 17,966.72
Financial liabilities
Trade pavables - - 2,155.23 - 1,929 .98
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts - . - 266.86
Borrowings - - - - - -
Other payables - - 0.86 - 1.03
Share appreciation rights - - 51045 - - 384.67
Total financial liabilities - 2,666.56 - 266.86 2,315.68

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at
fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the nputs used i determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three

levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemeath the table.

{Rs. in lacs)
Financial assets and liabilities ed at fair value At 31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments at FVTPL
Mutual funds 4,969.59 - - 4,969.59
AIF Category [11 - 1.401.97 - 1,401.97
ETF 2.631.90 2,631.90
Debentures 5,879.89 5.879.89
Financial Investments at FVYOCI -
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts 21.41 - - 21.41
Total financial assets 13,502.79 1,401.97 - 14,904.76
(Rs. in lacs)
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost At 31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Debuntures 2,122.89 2,122.89
Trade receivables - T.158.84 T,158.84
Cash and cash equivalents - 4,891.42 4.891.42
Term deposits with financial mstitutions - 4,487.75 4,487.75
Security deposit - - 308.59 308.59
Interest Accrued - - 212.00 212.00
Unbilled Revenue E 2,187.50 2,187.50
Other receivables - B8.46 88.46
Other deposit CD balance - 0.01 0.01
Total financial assets - - 21,457.46 21,457.46
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - 2,155.23 2,155.23
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts - - - -
Other payables - - 0.86 0.86
Share appreciation rights - - 510.45 510.45
Total financial liabilities - - 2,666.55 _2,666.55
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ii)

fii)

(Rs. in lacs)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value At 31 March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial In s at FVYTPL
Mutual funds 2,267.55 - - 2,267.55
AlF-Category 111 - 1,324.29 - 1,324.29
Debentures 688.50 - - 688.50
ETF 6,978.10 - - 6,978.10
Total financial assets 9.,934.15 1,324.29 - 11,258.44
(Rs. in lacs)
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost At 31 March 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 7.371.44 7.371.44
Cash and cash equivalents - - 4,803.72 4,803.72
Term deposits with financial institutions - - 3,433.00 3,433.00
Security deposit - - 31185 311.85
Interest Accrued - - 100.74 100.74
Unbilled Revenue - - 1,910.57 1,910.57
Other receivables - - i5.40 35.40
Other deposit CD_balance - 0.01 0.01
Total financial assets 17,966.72
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - 1,929.98 1,929.98
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts 266.86 - - 266.86
Borrowings - = o -
Other payables - - 1.03 1.03
Share appreciation rights - - 38467 384.67
Total finaneial linbilitics 266.86 - 2,315.68 1,582.54

Level 12 Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes hsted equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual
funds that have quoted price, The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing

price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-thecounter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant inputs

required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted

equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments inelude:
* the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2 except for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset, where

the fair values have been determined based on present values and the discount rates used were adjusted for counterparty or own credit risk

Valuation processes

The carrying amounts of trade receivubles, trade payables, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values,

due to their short-term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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Note 27: Fi

A)

B)

lidated financial stat -

1 risk gement

The company’s activities expose il o market nsk, liguidity sk and eredit nsk. In order 10 minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the company,

dervative financial mstruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered 10 hedge certain foreign currency risk exp Deri are used exclusively

for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative mstruments.
This note explans the sources of risk which the entity 1s exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash eguivalents, rade Aging analysis Credit raungs Diversification of bank deposits,
receivables and financial asscts, credit limits and letters of credil
Liquidity risk Barrowings and Trade payable Maturity analysis, cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines
and borrowing facilities
Market risk — foreign exchange Import Payables and Receivables on Cush flow forecasting Sensitivity analysis Forward foreign exchange contracts

Indenting services
Market risk — security prices Investments in equity securities, Mutual

Funds, Debentures, Fixed deposits,

Sensitivity unalysis Portfolio diversification

Allernative Invesiment Funds

The Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific arcas such as credit risk, liquidity risk, and Foreign Exchange Risk
effecting business operations. The company's risk management is carried out by the r as per guidelines and policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Credit risk

Credit nisk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its abligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses the
direct risk of default, risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company 15 exposed Lo credit risk from ils operating activitics (primarily
trade receivables), deposits with banks and loans given.

Credit nsk management

The company'’s eredit risk mainly from trade receivables as these are typically unsecured. This credit risk has always been managed through credit uppmvulb cstablishing
credit limits and continuous monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to whom credit is extended in the normal course of business. The Company the d
credit lnss based on past data, available information on public domain and experience. Expected credit losses of financial assets receivable are estimated based on hl!torlcal
data of the Company. The company has provisioning policy for expected credit losses. There is no credit nisk in bank deposits which are demand deposits. The credit risk is
minimum in case of entity to whom loan has been given.

The maximum exposure (o credit risk as at 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 1s the carrying value of such trade receivables as shown in note 8 of the financials,
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables

Particulars (Rs. in lacs)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2022 68984
Creation/(Reversal) of provision for ECL (257.22)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 432.61

Creation/(Reversal) of provision for ECL (147.48)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 285.13

Ligquidity risk

Prudent liguidity risk manag implies ining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of com:mned
credit facilities 10 meet obligations when due and 1o close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying busi pany treasury
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under commitied credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s hquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, In addition, the company s
liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary fo meet these, monitoring balance sheet
liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

March 31, 2024 (Rs. in lacs)
Fi ial liabilities Due in 1st year | Duein 2nd vear | Duein 3rd vear | Duein 4th vear | Due Sth vear & above
Trade payables 991.28 - < = %
Borrowings - - - - -
Lease liabilities 1.536.34 412.68 38.57 N -
SAR Liablitics 510.45 - . - b
Other financial 281.01 - - - -
liahilities

3,319.08 412.68 18.57 - =
March 31, 2023 (Rs. in lacs)
Fi ial liabilities Duein 1st year | Duein 2nd vear | Duein3rd year | Duein dth vear | Due Sth year & above
Trade payables 1,401.41 - - . -
Lease liabilities 575.92 550.99 323.04 3.08 -
SAR Liablities 384.67 - - -
Other financial 540.06 - - - -
liabilities

2,517.39 935.66 323.64
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C)
1

lidated financial

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The company operates mtemationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the USD, EUR and GBP.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company’s funetionsl
currency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the INR
cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The company’s risk management policy is to hedge around 50% to 70% of forecasted receivables for the subsequent 24 months. As per the risk management policy, foreign
exchange forward contracts are taken to hedge round 50% to 70% of the forecasted receivables,

a)  Foreign currency risk exposure:
Details of foreign currency exposures not covered by derivative instruments as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are given below
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Farticulars Currency " & ' f
Foreign Currency (Rs. in lacs) Foreign Currency (Rs. in lacs)
Receivables UsD 29,66,878 7.478.38 95,54,279 7.841.55
EUR 1,57,099 141.33 2,46,607 21871
GBP 4,29.763 45241 4.63,354 464.58
AUD 476,701 259.04 37.445 20,77
SGD 7,753 4.79 - -
b)  Sensttivity
The Company 15 mainly exposed to changes in USD and GBP. The sensitivity analysis demonstrate a reasonably possible change in USD, GBP and Euro exchange rates,
with all other vanables held constant, 5% appreciation/depreciation of USD, GBP and Euro with respect to functional currency of the company will have impact of following
{decrease)/increase in Profit & vice versa.
(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
usD 37392 392.08
EUR 7.07 10.91
GBP 22.62 23.23
AUD 12,95 1.04
SGD .24 -
i) Price risk
a)  Exposure

The company’s expasure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the company and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCT or at
fair value through profit or loss.

To manage s price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the company diversifies its portfolio, Diversification of the portfolio 1s done in accordance with the
limuts set by the company.

Note 28: Capital management

a)  Risk management
For the purpose of the Company's capital m capial i issued equity capital and all other equily reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary
objective of the Company capital management is to maximise the sharcholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condit and the requi of the financial covenants. The Company
monitors capital using a debt equity ratio and 15 measured by borrowings divided by total equity. Borrowings include current maturirites of non current borrowings
Net Debts include Liability portion of Preference shares as well as current and non current borrowings. Equity includes equity portion of preference shares.
(Rs. in lacs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net debt " =
Total equity 41,120.82 33,055.19
Net debt to equity ratio = -
b}  Dividends
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Equity shares
Final dividend of' FY 22-23 of Rs. 5 per fully paid equity share 1,077.87 -
Final dividend of FY 21-22 of Rs. 1.25 per fully paid equity share . g 269 47
(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
In CY 23-24 the directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of Rs,
5 per fully paid equity share. This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of 1.077.87 .
harcholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. '
In PY 22.23 the directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of Rs.
3.75 per fully paid equity share (March 31, 2022 © Rs, 1.25 per fully paid equity
share) & special dividend of Rs. 1.25/- per fully paid equity share . This proposed - 1,077.87

dividend 15 subject to the approval of sharcholders in the ensuing annual general
meelng,
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 29: Related party transactions

As required under Ind AS 24 — “Related Party Disclosures”, following are details of transactions during the year with the related parties of

the Company as defined in Ind AS- 24.

(To the extent identified by management and relied upon by auditors)

Name of the Related Parties

Nature of control

Delta Infosolutions Private Limited

Ultimate Holding Company

Datamatics Global Services Limited

Holding Company

Datamatics Global Services , Inc

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Datamatics Infotech Ltd UK

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Datamatics Global Services Corp, PHP

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Datamatics Business Solutions Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Mr. Lalit S, Kanodia

Chairman

Mr. Sameer L. Kanodia

Managing Director and Chief Executive officer

Mr. Ashish Jain

Key Managerial Personnel - Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Mrs. Anju Kanodia

Executive Director

Mr. Prashant Parekh

Key Managerial Personnel - Company Secreteray (CS)

Nature of transactions

(Rs. in lacs)

Naiitie 61 6 velited party Description March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Datamatics Global Services Expenses incurred by DGSL 134.59 219.81
Limited (DGSL) Miscellaneous Income 3.85 -

Amount receivable as at the end of the year 4.54 -
Special Dividend Paid during the year 269.47 -
Interim Dividend Paid during the year 808.40 269.47
Datamatics Global Services T —
Inc., DRSS ; 51.44
Datamatics Business Solutions |Professional Fees 0.46 0.46
Ltd Amount payable as at the end of the year g 0.03
Datamatics Staffing Services  |Professional Fees 2.66 -
Datamatics Infotech Ltd. Technical Fees 66.01 30.88
Amount payable as at the end of the year 8.54 >
Datamatics Global Services Technical Fees 48.56 27.35
Corp, PHP Amount payable as at the end of the year 3.89 .
Mr. Sameer L. Kanodia Commission paid during the year* 190.73 171.48
Mrs. Anju Kanodia Commission paid during the year* 63.58 57.16
* Commission paid during the year is considered on the basis of actual pay-out
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
Name of the related party March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mr. Sameer L. Kanodia 200.00 149.94
Mrs. Anju S. Kanodia 69.02 35.99
M. Ashish Jain (CFO) 112.13 98.74
Ms. Vanita Naik (CS) - o —— 10.95
Mr. Prashant Parekh (CS) 16.95] /a\PEHAENN 586
‘..?u 1'\ r,'(.
:a;r/ (\
:“E{ A "n w
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)
Note 30: Leases

Company as a lessee

As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred
significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Company. Under Ind AS 116, the Company
recognizes right of use assets and lease liabilities for most leases i.e. these leases are on balance sheet.

The following table presents the various components of lease costs:

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation charge on right-to-use assct 538.94 48624
Interest on Lease Liabilities 102.16 80.32
Net total cash outflow for leases 626.57 564.51
Carrying amount of right-to-use asset 890.89 1,232.66
Net total cash outflow for leases March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total cash outflow for leases 630.31 564.51
LLess: Concessional rent/ Early Termination of Lease (3.74) -
Net total cash outflow for leases 626.57 564.51
Note 31: Earning Per Share
(Rs. in lacs)

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit after tax is attributable to Owners of Lumina Datamatics Limited (Rs. in lacs) 8,778.07 7,639.14
The weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (in lacs) FV Rs. § 215.57 215.57
The weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (in lacs) FV Rs. § 215.57 215.57
Earnings per share - basic (In Rs.) 40.72 35.44
Earnings per share - diluted (In Rs.) 40.72 35.44
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Note 32: Employee benefits

The disclosure as required by Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits” are given below:

The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation of
leave benefits (unfunded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method.

a) Defined Contribution Plan

(Rs.in lacs)

=

iii)

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on contributions:
Employers contribution to provident fund 748.28 653.17
Employers contribution to employees' state insurance 72.80 74.08
Employers contribution to labour welfare fund and others 0.88 0.83
Total 821.96 728.07
b) Defined Benefit plan:
Gratuity and Leave Encashment
i) Movement in Present Value of Obligation
(Rs.in lacs)
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 797.62 704.46 326.41 295.81
Current Service Cost 150.39 123.06 97.09 79.08
Interest Expense ot Cost 57.95 41.53 23.72 17.44
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising fron: - & - 5
- change in demographic assumptions 0.52 (38.30) - -
- change in financial assumptions (4.32) 35.49 0.65 (15.00)
- experience variance (i.e. actual experience vs assumptions) 46.16 0.18 20.21 20.28
Past Service Cost - - - -
Benefits Paid 77.31 118.38 59.72 71.19
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 971.02 748.04 408.35 326.41
Expenses recognised in the income statement and other comprehensive income (Rs.in lacs)
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Current service cost 141.36 123.06 89.29 79.08
Past service cost - - - -
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) 54.35 41.53 23.72 17.44
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement 195.71 164.59 113.01 96.52
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gains) / losses - - - -
- change in demographic assumptions - (38.30) - -
- Change in financial assumptions 1.67 35.49 0.65 (15.00)
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 47.04 0.18 20.21 20.28
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive
income 48.71 (2.63) 20.86 5.28
Financial Assumptions
The principal financial assumptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below (Rs.in_lacs)

Particulars

Leave Encashment

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Discount Rate (per annum)
Salary growth rate (per annum)
Mortality Rate

Gratuity
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
7.20% 7.25%
3.50% 3.50%
IALM 12-14 IALM 12-14

7.20%
3.50%

TALM 12-14

7.25%
3.50%
TIALM 12-14




iv) Demographic Assumptions

The principal demographic assumptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below: (Rs.in_laes)
Paiil Gratuity Leave Encashment
articulars
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Mortality rate IALM 12-14 / (% of TALM 06-08) 100% 100% 100% 100%
Normal retirement age 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years
Attrition / Withdrawal rates, based on completed years of service: (per annum)
Less than 5 years 24%024% 24%/24% 24% 24%
Equal to and above 5 years 24% 24% 24% 24%
Rate of Leave Availment (per annum) 2% 2%
Rate of Leave Encashment during employment (per annum) 0% 0%
(Rs.in lacs)
v)|Maturity profile of Defined Benefit obligation Gratuity Leave Encashment
Expected Cash flow over the next (valued on undiscounted basis) March 31,2024 |March 31,2023 |March 31,2024 [March 31, 2023
1 Year 246.83 190.46 123.95 98.99
2 to 5 years 647.69 500.72 269.22 215.61
6 1o 10 years 30342 232.09 105.63 84.75
More than 10 years 109.90 85.66 33.47 27.22

d) LDL PHANTOM STOCK APPRECIATION PLAN 2021

The Company has granted “Phantom Stock Units” under “LDL Phantom Stock Appreciation Plan 20217 The plan shall extend to certain employees as
identified by the Board/ Nomination and Remuneration Committee, being the permanent employees of the Company including its Subsidiaries and its directors
subject to certain vesting conditions. Phantom units shall vest at the end of 3 years from the date of grant and based upon satisfaction of the performance
criteria, The continuation of employee in the services of the Company shall be the primary requirement of the vesting. FY 23-24 was the
final year in which the employees fulfilling the vesting criterias became eligible for these options. Details of the outstanding units as at March 31, 2024
of Lumina Datamatics Limited are given below:

— 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
articulars -
Phantom stock options plan

Total no. of
anitefalikres 62,500 1.26,000 2,05,826
Method of Fair Value as Fair Value as Fair Value as
accounting defined below* defined below* defined below*
Exercise period 3 years from the |3 years from the |3 years from the

date of gram date of grant date of grant
Grant date 01-04-2021 01-04-2021 01-04-2021
Fair Value per unit Rs. 246 per unit Rs. 246 per unit Rs. 248 per unit
Method of
settlement Cash Cash Cash

In accordance with above, the amount of provision outstanding at the year end is Rs, 510.45 lakhs (PY Rs 384.67 Lacs)

* Fair Market Value per Unit as defined in the plan is as follows:

The FMV will be calculated based on a multiplier of 1.00 of Revenue and 7.4 multiple of EBITDA in equal weightage of Revenue and EBITDA divided by total
number of equity shares on fully diluted basis as per latest available 31st March 2024 audited balance sheet.




LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 33: Contingent liabilities
Provision is made in the financial statements if it becomes probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for:

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

Name of the Statute |Nature of dues |Amount of Appeal Financial year | Forum where the dispute is pending |
Rs. 127.13 Commuissioner of Income tax
] i
MR AR A, S 051 Inessie (Amount Deposited - Nil) 2017-18 (Appeals), Chennai
Rs. 44493 Commissioner of Income tax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax (Amount Deposited - $8.79) 2019-20 (Appeals), Chennai
Central Goods and
Services Tax Ac GST At 2016-17 GST Appellate Authority
,,31 ,; 8 108006 # (Amount Deposited - 3.78) g PP

Note 34: Derivative transactions

The company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure in foreign currency. The information on derivative instruments 1s given below:
The table below analyzes the derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as of the Balance Sheet date:

(Rs, in lacs)
Bavitcalics As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2024 2023

Not later than one month 616.09 834.80
Later than one month and not later than three months 820.29 1,511.87
Later than three months and not later than one year 3,619.62 6,444.10
Later than one year 1,420.67 2,492.70
Total 6,476.67 11,283.47

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Fair Value gain /

Notional amount

Fair Value gain /

No. of Notional amount of (loss) of Currency (loss)
Currency Contracts |Currency Forward contracts (Rs. in lacs) No. of Contracts [Forward contracts (Rs. in lacs)
UsD 59 76,54,500 21.41 100 1,38,31.960 (266.86)
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LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the C lidated Fi ial Stat

Note 38: Impairment of Assets
As per Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 issued by the Central Government, in consultation with National Advisory Committee on Accounting Standards (NACAS') and

the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable, the carrying value of the asset has been reviewed for impairment of assets and assets have been impairmed
where required.

Note 39:Miro, Small and Medium Enterprise
in terms of Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, the outstanding to these enterprises are required to be disclosed. However, these enterprises
are required 1o be registered under the Act. The dues outstanding towards MSME are disclosed under Refer note 15

Note 40: Segment Analysis
The Group operates in only one business segment, e-publishing services which mainly include editorial services, composition services, media and related services. All assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses are related to their one-segment activities.

Note 41: Foreign currency translations

The assets and liabilities of US foreign subsidiaries are translated at the closing exchange rates at Rs.83.40 per USS (PY - Rs. 82,17 per US$) and the assets and liabilities of German
subsidiary is translated at the closing exchange rate of Rs.89.96 per Euro (PY - Rs. 89.01 per Euro) and the assets and liabilities of UK subsidiary is translated at the closing exchange
rate of Rs.105.27 per GBP (PY - Rs. 101.33 per GBP) and the assets and liabilities of Phillipines subsidiary 1s translated at the closing exchange rate of Rs.1.48 per Peso. Income and
expenses of foreign subsidiary are translated at average exchange rates at Rs.82.77 per USS (PY - Rs. 80.30 per USS$) and Rs. 89.61 per Euro (PY - Rs. 83.70 per Euro) and Rs. 103.92
per GBP (PY - Rs. 96.91 per GBP) and Rs. 1.48 per Peso

Note 42: Code on Social Security

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity The Mimistry of
Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active
consideration by the Ministry. The Group will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the
period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Note 43: Events occuring after Balance Sheet date

The Board of Directors of Lumina Datamatics Limited at their meeting held on May 07, 2024 has recommended, subject to approval of shareholders, final dividend of Rs. 5/- per equity
share for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

Note 44: Crypto or Viriual Currency
The Company has neither traded nor invested in ¢rypo currency or virtual currency during the year.

Note 45: Benami Property

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

Note 46: Relationship With Struck Off Companies
The Company has no transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act. 1956.

Note 47: Acquisition of Company - Diacritech Technologies Private Limited
Pursuant to the approval of board of directors of the Company dated April 07, 2023 , the Company has acquired 100% of equity stake in Diacritech Technologies Private Limited at a

total consideration of INR 212,039,000. As per the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA), the consideration is to be paid in tranches over subsequent years. As of the balance sheet date,
Rs.18,500,000 is still payable.

Note 48: Partial sale of LDR eRetail Limited

During the year,Lumina Datamatics Limited(the Holding company of LD Eretail Limited) has entered into a joint venture agreement with DataVerze Analytics Ltd on 7th march 2024
1o form LuminaD). Al a joint venture to provide cutting-edge services in Generative Al and Machine Learning. As per the terms of this agreement, Lumina Datamatics Limited would
be selling 40% of its stake in LD Eretail limited to DataVerze Analytics Ltd on successful completion of the conditions precedent to this agreement. The due date for completion of

conditions precedent has been decided as 315t May 2024, post which the company would provide for the accounting treatment of LD Eretail Limited in accordance with the applicable
Ind AS.
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